
City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

July 11, 2017, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

Agenda 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Linda Combs 
Council Member Richard Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Brad Hanson 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Approval of Agenda
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 17-011: Amending the City of Palmer Municipal Code
Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses Regarding Landlords ........................ Page  3 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting ...................................................... Page 13 

E. Communication and Appearance Requests
1. Planning & Zoning Commission Chair Dan Lucas

F. Reports
1. City Manager’s Report .......................................................................... Page 21 
2. City Clerk’s Report ............................................................................... Page 29 
3. Mayor’s Report .................................................................................... Page 37 
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. Audience Participation

H. Public Hearing
1. Ordinance No. 17-008: Adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities

Donation Policy (Pending Motion) (3rd Public Hearing)  ............................ Page 39 
2. Resolution No. 17-024: Authorizing the City Manager and Mayor to Execute the Necessary

Documents to Purchase Fire Station No. 3-1 on Lots 10, 11, and 12, Block 12, of the ARRC
Subdivision from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough In the Amount of One Dollar per Lease
Agreement Dated February 28, 1978 ..................................................... Page 59 

I. New Business
1. Committee of the Whole to Discuss Borough Sales Tax (note: action may be taken by the council

following the committee of the whole)
a. Resolution No. 17-025: Requesting the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly Not Adopt

Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, Ordinance Serial No. 17-094, and Ordinance No. 17-095 all
Pertaining to an Implementation of an Areawide Sales Tax ................ Page 67 

J. Record of Items Placed on the Table
Page 1 of 128

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


K. Audience Participation

L. Council Member Comments

M. Adjournment

Tentative 2017 Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting Date Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

July 25 Special 6 pm Audit Report 

July 25 Regular 7 pm 

Aug 8 Regular 7 pm 

Aug 22 Regular 7 pm 

Sept 12 Regular 7 pm 

Sept 26 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 17-011 

 
Subject:  Amending the City of Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses Regarding 
Landlords 
 
Agenda of: July 11, 2017 – Introduced 
 July 25, 2017 – Public Hearing 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ___________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
  

Originator Information: 

Originator: Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

  Finance 
 

 6/27/17 

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 3 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 17-011 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
The Palmer Municipal Code 5.04 Business Licenses had requirements for business license applications to 
include copy of current State of Alaska business license. This requirement held up the City’s processing 
of city business licenses requiring the city to hold checks and wait for businesses to comply. This 
requirement has been removed from the business license application. 
 
The addition of a Landlord License is being added to the Business License code for residential rentals.  
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 17-011 amending the City of Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses 
Regarding Landlords. 
 
 

Page 4 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 17-011 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Amending Palmer Municipal Codes 5.04 
Business Licenses Regarding Landlords 
 

WHEREAS, a license is required for the privilege of engaging in business in the city and; 
 
WHEREAS, residential rentals are a form of business in the city and;  
 
WHEREAS, the city is not responsible for administration of state business licenses and; 
 

 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 is hereby amended to read as follows (new 
language is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 

 
Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses 
5.04.010 Definitions. 
In this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

A. “Business” means a for profit or nonprofit entity or person engaging or offering to engage in 
a trade, a service, a profession, or an activity with the goal of receiving a financial benefit in 
exchange for the provision of services, or goods or other property including commercial rental 
properties; 

B. “Department” means the department of finance; 

C. “Director” means the director of the department of finance; 

Introduced by: City Manager 
Date: July 11, 2017 

Public Hearing: July 25, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 2 of 8 

D. “Dwelling” means a building designed or used exclusively for living quarters for one or more 
families 

E. “Landlord” means an owner of a residential dwelling that is rented or leased to an individual; 

D.F. “Licensee” means the person to whom a business or landlord license is issued pursuant to 
this chapter; 

E. G.“Person” includes an individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation, 
estate trust, business trust, receiver, or any group or combination acting as a unit; 

G. H. “Seller” shall have the same meaning given in PMC 3.16.020. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 
10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 209 § 4, 1978; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.12) 

5.04.020 License – Required. 
For the privilege of engaging in business in the city, a person shall first apply on forms required 
by the department of finance, obtain a license to do so, and pay the license fee provided in PMC 
5.04.070. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.1) 

5.04.023 License – Type and duration. 
A. Biennial Business License.  

1. A biennial business license is issued to a business that provides goods and/or services 
throughout the year or a portion of the year.  

2. Businesses with a biennial business license shall not be required to have a separate 
business license for participation at the state fair or a special event lasting three days or less. 

3. A biennial business license issued for a particular line of business covers all of a licensee’s 
operations in the city for that line of business, regardless of the number of its establishments.  

4. A biennial business license is issued for the calendar year for which an application is 
received and shall expire on December 31st of the following calendar year.  

5. A biennial business license is only available to existing business license holders; new 
businesses cannot apply for a biennial business license until they have an established annual 
business license. 

B. Annual Business License.  

1. An annual business license is issued to a business that provides goods and/or services 
throughout the year or a portion of the year.  

2. Businesses with an annual business license shall not be required to have a separate 
business license for participation at the state fair or a special event lasting three days or less. 

3. An annual business license issued for a particular line of business covers all of a licensee’s 
operations in the city for that line of business, regardless of the number of its establishments.  

4. An annual business license is issued for the calendar year for which an application is 
received and shall expire on December 31st of the calendar year in which it was issued.  

C. Special Event Business License.  

Page 6 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 3 of 8 

1. A special event business license is issued for the sole purpose and privilege of engaging in 
business at a special event that lasts three days or less.  

2. A separate special event business license is required for each special event lasting three 
days or less. 

3. A special event business license shall expire at the conclusion of the special event. 

D. Alaska State Fair Business License. 

1. An Alaska State Fair business license is a temporary license issued by the city for the sole 
purpose and privilege of engaging in business at the Alaska State Fairgrounds during the 
Alaska State Fair.  

2. A state fair business license shall expire at the conclusion of the state fair during the year 
in which the license was issued. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012) 

5.04.025 License – Application – Biennial and annual business license. 
An application for a biennial and annual business license shall be made to the director of finance 
on a form approved by the director and shall be accompanied by the following: 

A. The license fee established in the current, adopted budget; 

B. Proof that the applicant has the following: 

1. A current state of Alaska business license, as required by the state; 

B. 2. Any  Copies of any professional or occupational licenses; 

C. The business address and telephone number to be used by the applicant for the business to 
be operated pursuant to the license; 

D. A complete description of the type(s) of goods and/or services that shall be offered under the 
business license. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012) 

5.04.027 License – Application – Special event and Alaska State Fair business license. 
Application for a special event or Alaska State Fair business license shall be made to the director 
of finance on a form approved by the director and shall be accompanied by the following: 

A. The license fee established in the current, adopted budget; 

B. Proof the applicant has the following: 

1. A current state of Alaska business license, as required by the state; 

B. 2. Any  Copies of any professional or occupational licenses; 

C. The business address and telephone number to be used by the applicant for the business to 
be operated pursuant to the license; 

D. A complete description of the type(s) of goods and/or services that shall be offered under the 
license. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012) 

Page 7 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 4 of 8 

 

5.04.028    Landlord License  
A landlord license is required for any residential rentals.  The landlord license is issued for a 
calendar year and expires on December 31st of the calendar year for which it was issued.  The 
application for a landlord license shall be made to the director of finance on a form approved by 
the director and shall be accompanied by the following: 
 
A. The license fee established in the current, adopted budget; 
 
B. The name of the landlord, address and telephone number; 
 
C. The street address of the residential rental property; 
 
D. If managed by a third party, contact information for the property manager. 
 
5.04.033 Business or Landlord license not issued. 
A. No business or landlord license shall be issued unless a person is compliant with the 
requirements of this chapter and is current in the payment and collection of sales taxes, or any 
other payments, fees, taxes, charges, penalties, interest, citation, or other amounts that are due 
and owing to the city. 

B. The department may issue a license to an applicant who does not meet the requirements of 
this section or who has a history of noncompliance with the code if such applicant posts a bond, 
furnishes a statement of net worth or additional security to ensure the full and prompt payment 
of all fees, taxes, charges, penalties, interest or other amounts due the city. 

C. Each person who obtains or is required to obtain a business or landlord license in accordance 
with this chapter consents to the inspection of that person’s state business license, application, 
or other business records as necessary in order to facilitate the accomplishment of the provisions 
and objectives of this chapter. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012) 

5.04.035 Annual or biennial license – Renewal. 
Application for renewal of a license and payment of the renewal fee shall be made before February 
1st of the applicable year. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 
1978 code § 3.2. Formerly 5.04.030) 

5.04.040 License – Duration. 
Repealed by Ord. 12-017. (Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.3) 

5.04.050 Display of business license. 
A. The city business license must be prominently displayed in all locations where the seller 
conducts business, including temporary locations. 

B. A licensee with no permanent place of business shall display the license upon request. 

C. Seller shall be charged the fee established in the adopted budget for failure to display a 
business or landlord license. (Ord. 14-025 § 3, 2014; Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 
2011) 

Page 8 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 5 of 8 

5.04.060 License – Compliance with other provisions required. 
A person engaging in a business subject to licensing provisions of a regulatory nature must, in 
addition to filing the regular application required by this chapter, comply with any other or 
additional regulatory provisions before being entitled to a license. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 
10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.4. Formerly 5.04.050) 

5.04.070 License – Fee. 
A. The license fee, established in the current, adopted budget, shall be paid to the city for each 
business or landlord license and shall be applicable for the calendar year in which the fee is paid. 

B. Business or landlord license and permit late fees are nonrefundable. 

C. If payment is made by check, bill of exchange, or note which is later returned by the drawee 
as uncollectible because of insufficient funds or is dishonored by the drawee for any reason, the 
dishonor is prima facie evidence of nonpayment of the license fee.  

D. In event of nonpayment, the applicant shall be subject to additional penalty as prescribed by 
PMC 5.04.080. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 07-029 § 14, 2007; Ord. 487 
§ 3, 1995; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.5. Formerly 5.04.060) 

5.04.080 License – Failure to apply – Penalty. 
A. Failure to file a business or landlord license application or pay the license fee as prescribed by 
this chapter shall result in a penalty. The amount of penalty shall be prescribed in the current, 
adopted budget and shall be due at the same time a license fee is due. 

B. Failure to pay a penalty at the time the fee for the license is made may result in denial of a 
license application. 

C. In case of delinquency in the payment of any fee or penalty due under this chapter, the interest 
rate established in the current, adopted budget shall be assessed. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 
10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 07-029 § 15, 2007; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.6. Formerly 
5.04.070) 

5.04.090 Surrender of license. 
A. A business or landlord license must be surrendered to the city by the licensee to whom it was 
issued immediately upon the licensee ceasing to do business. 

B. If there is a change in ownership or form of organization, such as from a sole proprietorship 
to a partnership or a corporation, the admission or withdrawal of a partner, or any other change 
in the ownership structure, the licensee making such change shall surrender the current city 
business or landlord license to the city for cancellation. The successor owner shall be required to 
file a new application for a city business or landlord license pursuant to this chapter and upon 
approval, a new city business or landlord license will be issued. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-
017 § 3, 2011) 

5.04.100 City manager regulation promulgation authority. 
The city manager may, with the approval of the council, promulgate regulations necessary to 
determine and collect fees imposed and to otherwise enforce the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 
12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.7. Formerly 
5.04.080) 

Page 9 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 6 of 8 

5.04.110 Unlawful acts designated. 
It is unlawful for a person to: 

A. Willfully evade the licensing provisions of this chapter; 

B. Fail to make an application for license or fail to keep or produce any records required under 
this chapter or by regulation; 

C. Make a false or fraudulent return or false statement with intent to defraud the city or evade 
payment of the fee; or 

D. Aid or abet another in an attempt to evade payment of the fee. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 
10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.8. Formerly 5.04.090) 

5.04.120 False statements by agents prohibited. 
It is unlawful for an executive officer or agent of a corporation or agent of a person to make or 
permit to be made for his or her principal a false return or false statement in answer to an inquiry 
from the director of finance with intent to evade the payment of the fee or to comply with the 
provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 
1978 code § 3.9. Formerly 5.04.100) 

5.04.130 Violation – Penalty. 
Any person violating any requirement of this chapter or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto 
shall be penalized as an ordinance violator. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit, but 
may be in addition to, any other remedy available under this chapter, at law or at equity to 
enforce violations of this chapter. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 209 § 3, 
1978; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.10. Formerly 5.04.110) 

5.04.140 Violation – Testimony required – Compromise. 
In a prosecution for a violation under this chapter, no person otherwise competent as a witness 
is privileged to refuse to testify on the grounds that his or her testimony may incriminate him or 
her; however, no indictment or prosecution shall afterwards be brought against the witness on 
account of an offense or transaction concerning which he testifies as a witness. In a prosecution 
under this chapter, the city attorney may, with the consent of the city councilmanager, 
compromise the case by accepting from the defendant a sum not less than the fee, penalties and 
interest provided in PMC 5.04.080 and costs of such prosecution. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 
10-017 § 3, 2011; Ord. 166 § 1, 1972; 1978 code § 3.11. Formerly 5.04.120) 

5.04.150 License – Suspension or revocation. 
A. The city manager, or designee, may suspend or revoke a business or landlord license if a 
licensee is in violation of any requirement of this chapter, code, or any regulation adopted 
pursuant thereto pursuant to the notice requirements of PMC 5.04.160. 

B. The city manager, or designee, may immediately suspend the license of a licensee who is 
delinquent in the remittance of sales tax or sales tax returns under Chapter 3.16 PMC, Sales Tax.  

C. A suspension issued under this subsection shall be effective immediately upon the giving of 
written notice of suspension for failure to remit and pay city sales taxes to the licensee. 

Page 10 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 7 of 8 

D. A license suspended under this subsection shall be lifted upon the licensee’s compliance with 
the city sales tax requirements, including remittance and payment of all delinquent sales taxes, 
sales tax returns, interest and penalties. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011) 

5.04.160 License – Suspension or revocation – Notice. 
A. The city manager, or designee, may not suspend or revoke a business or landlord license 
without first providing the licensee at least 30 days’ written notice of the intent to suspend or 
revoke the business or landlord license and an opportunity for a hearing on the suspension or 
revocation, except as provided in PMC 5.04.150(B). 

B. The notice required under this section shall be as follows: 

1. Notice of the proposed revocation or suspension shall be made in writing and mailed via 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known address of the licensee. 

2. Notice of the proposed revocation or suspension shall contain the name and address of 
the licensee, the name of the business for which the license was issued, and describe the 
reason for the revocation or suspension with citation to the relevant code provision, if 
applicable, and the name, address and telephone number of the city representative to contact 
concerning the proposed revocation or suspension. 

3. The notice of suspension or revocation shall also contain a statement advising licensee of 
his or her right to request a hearing to challenge the proposed suspension or revocation 
pursuant to subsections (C) and (D) of this section. 

C. The licensee has a right to a hearing on the proposed revocation or suspension by requesting 
a hearing in writing to the city representative identified in the notice of suspension or revocation 
not more than 30 days after the date of the notice of proposed revocation or suspension. Within 
10 days of receipt of a written request for a hearing, the city manager, or designee, shall schedule 
a hearing on the proposed suspension or revocation pursuant to PMC 5.04.170. 

D. Failure to request a hearing within 30 days of receipt of a notice of suspension or revocation 
constitutes a waiver of any further rights to appeal under this chapter and the decision of the city 
manager shall become final 30 days after the date of notice given pursuant to subsection (B) of 
this section. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011) 

5.04.170 License – Suspension or revocation – Hearing. 
A. A hearing requested pursuant to PMC 5.04.160 shall be held before the city manager or 
designee. This hearing shall be recorded, conducted in an informal manner, and shall not be 
bound by the formal rules of evidence. 

B. The purpose of the hearing shall be to determine whether good cause exists for suspending 
or revoking a license issued under this chapter. Good cause exists when it is determined that the 
licensee is in violation of the requirements of this chapter or any other requirement of this code. 

C. The licensee has the right to appear, present evidence, and examine and/or cross-examine 
witnesses for the purpose of establishing that licensee is not in violation of the requirements of 
this chapter. The city manager, or designee, has the right to cross-examine any witnesses 
presented by the licensee. 

Page 11 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-011 Page 8 of 8 

D. Failure of the licensee to appear at the time set for a hearing requested under this section, 
except for good cause shown, shall result in a waiver of any further appeal rights and the decision 
of the city manager becomes final. 

E. Within 10 days following the conclusion of the hearing, the city manager, or designee, shall 
issue a written decision whether to suspend or revoke the license which contains written findings 
in support of the decision based upon the evidence presented at the hearing. A written decision 
to suspend or revoke a business or landlord license issued pursuant to this chapter shall advise 
the licensee of his or her right to appeal the decision pursuant to PMC 5.04.180. A copy of the 
decision shall be provided to the licensee via certified mail, return-receipt requested, and shall 
take effect immediately upon its issuance. (Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-017 § 3, 2011) 

5.04.180 Appeals to superior court. 
A. A licensee may appeal a decision made pursuant to PMC 5.04.170 not later than 30 days 
following the date of written notice of the decision from the city manager. Failure to appeal a 
decision made pursuant to PMC 5.04.170 within 30 days of the date of notice constitutes a waiver 
of his or her appeal rights and the city manager’s decision becomes final. 

B. Appeals from the written decision of the hearing officer shall be made to the superior court for 
the state of Alaska, in Palmer, Alaska. The hearing before the superior court shall be treated as 
an administrative appeal heard solely on the record and shall be governed by Part VI of the Alaska 
Court Rules of Appellate Procedure (Superior Court as an Appellate Court), as amended. 

C. A licensee bringing an appeal under this section shall be responsible for the costs to prepare a 
transcript and record of the hearing conducted in accordance with PMC 5.04.170. Upon receipt 
of a notice of appeal, the director of finance shall estimate the cost of preparing the transcript of 
the hearing and compiling the record on appeal. The licensee shall deposit the estimated costs 
for preparation of the transcript and record with the director in advance of preparation of the 
transcript and record. The director shall refund any excess deposit or charge to the business 
owner for costs exceeding the deposit. (Ord. 15-022 § 6, 2015; Ord. 12-017 § 3, 2012; Ord. 10-
017 § 3, 2011) 

 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  Ordinance 17-0XX shall take effect July 26, 2017. 

 
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 201X.  
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

Page 12 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 1 of 7 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
June 13, 2017 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on June 13, 2017, at 7:00 pm in the council chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor Linda Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Richard Best – participated telephonically Steve Carrington 
David Fuller Brad Hanson  
Peter LaFrance 

 
Also in attendance were the following: 
 
Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
Michael Gatti, City Attorney Bernadette Packa, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Carrington. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 17-009-Z-1-SL: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the 

Designation of Tax Parcel C8, Located in Section 4, Township 17 North, Range 2 East, Seward 
Meridian from R-1, Single-family Residential to R-4, High Density Residential with Special 
Limitations 

b. Introduction of Ordinance No. 17-010-Z-2-SL: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the 
Designation of Lot 8, Lot 7 and the West One-half of Lot 6, Block 3, T A Smith Subdivision Located 
in Section 33, Township 18 North, Range 2 East, Seward Meridian from R-2, Low Density 
Residential to CG – General Commercial with Special Limitations 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. May 9, 2017, Regular Meeting 
b. May 23, 2017, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda Items 1.a., 1.b., and Minutes 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

 

Page 13 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 2 of 7 

 
1. c. Action Memorandum No. 17-038: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Contract with AlasConnect, LLC, for Information Technology Services in the Amount Not to Exceed 
$114,000.00 Annually 

 
Council Member Hanson requested to be recused from the vote due to his wife being employed by the 
parent company of AlasConnect, LLC. 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda Item 1.c. 
Moved by: Carrington 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried by a 6-0 roll call vote with one recused 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, LaFrance 
Recused: Hanson 

 
E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 
Item 1 – Presentation by LaMarr Anderson, Board of Economic Development Chair 

• Commented on the board being full and the excellent attendance by its members; 
• Provided a broad overview of the board’s goals; 
• Commented on the board’s desire to change its meeting time to 6:00 p.m.; 
• Addressed a resolution in support of community and regional running events planned to be brought 

before the Council; and 
• Commented on the excellence of the Council Community Grant program.  

 
Mayor DeVries expressed the appreciation of the Council to the entire Board of Economic Development for its 
good work and the hours it puts in. 
 
F. REPORTS 
 
Item 1 – City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Nathan Wallace: 

• Highlighted his construction report;  
• Commented on the potential Alaska Government shutdown and any impact on the City of Palmer; 
• Provided an update on the Greater Palmer Area Fire Service agreement; 
• Noted the official dispatch transition date would be June 28, 2017; 
• Commented on the influx of skydivers due to the Summer Solstice Boogie held by the Alaska Skydive 

Center; 
• Noted the Scottish games scheduled for June 24, 2017; and 
• Addressed a waiver of formal procedures to award a contract to MEA for the relocation of electrical 

service at the wastewater treatment plant. 
 
Item 2 – City Clerk’s Report 
 
City Clerk Norma Alley: 

• Highlighted her written report; 
• Noted board and commission members with attendance issues;  
• Noted a change in the meeting schedule; and  
• Fielded questions from the Council. 

 
 

Page 14 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 3 of 7 

 
Main Motion: To Reconsider Approval of the Minutes for the May 23, Regular Meeting at 

the June 27 Meeting 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Hanson 
Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Direction was given to the City Clerk to review the audio of the May 23, 2017, Regular Meeting, and correct 
the Minutes to more clearly reflect the comments made by Council Member Best during Council Member 
Comments. 
 
Item 3 – Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor DeVries:  

• Requested Council Members make recommendations for the Palmer Pride Awards; and  
• Requested any changes to the 2017 AML Position Statements be forwarded to the City Clerk; and 
• Spoke to the upcoming Highland Games. 

 
Deputy Mayor Combs reminded everyone of the upcoming Friday Fling performance by the Taiko Drummers 
from Anchorage.  
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Eugene Carl Haberman: 

• Spoke to the lack of opportunity for the public to speak on the Information Technology Services 
contract; and 

• Noted a reason must be given by a Council Member in order to be recused from a vote. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Item 1 – Resolution No. 17-020: Accepting and Appropriating a Grant Offer from the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) in an Amount up to $7,827,300.00 for Runway 16/34 Rehabilitation and Related 
Improvements at the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Negotiate and Execute the Grant when Offered 
 
Mayor DeVries requested a staff report. City Manager Wallace noted receipt of the grant offer with the same 
grant assurances listed in the offer letter.  
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing. 
 
Eugene Carl Haberman: 

• Noted Resolution No. 17-020 was Introduced and taken to Public Hearing at the same meeting; and 
• Requested the item be brought back to the next meeting for an additional public hearing. 

 
Hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor DeVries closed the public hearing. 
 
Deputy Mayor Combs commended City Manager Wallace for his efforts in getting the Runway 16/34 
Rehabilitation Project underway and keeping the Council apprised of its progress. 
 
 

Page 15 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 4 of 7 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 17-020 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Hanson 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum No. 17-039: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Construction Management and Related Additional Engineering Design Contract with HDL Engineering 
Consultants in the Amount of $682,455.00 for the Construction Management of the Airport Improvements 
Project, Contingent Upon Receiving a Federal Aviation Administration Grant 
 

Main Motion: To Authorize Action Memorandum No. 17-039 
Moved by: Fuller 

Seconded by: Combs 
Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Item 2 - Action Memorandum No. 17-040: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Contract for the Construction of the “Rehabilitation of Runway 16/34 and Related Improvements” Project (Bid 
No. 17-04PW) to Pruhs Construction Company, LLC, in the Amount of $6,404,078.20, Contingent Upon 
Receiving a Federal Aviation Administration Grant 
 

Main Motion: To Authorize Action Memorandum No. 17-040 
Moved by: Carrington 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Item 3 – Action Memorandum No. 17-041: Authorizing the City Mayor to Negotiate and Enter into an 
Agreement with the State of Alaska Regarding Improvements and Maintenance as Part of the Glenn Highway 
Reconstruction, MP 32-44 Project 
 
Council Member LaFrance requested a staff report. City Manager Wallace provided a timeline of the project 
and highlighted the division of responsibilities for the transfer of lands. He explained the City would be 
assuming maintenance of the highway and the pathway in two to four years.  
 
City Attorney Gatti expressed desired changes with the agreement including receipt of a Warranty Deed from 
the State, inclusion of a mediation provision, and deletion of indemnification provisions. 
 
Council Member Hanson expressed concern over assuming ownership of the roadways and the costs for future 
paving projects or necessary upgrades. 
 
City Manager Wallace noted the City was still in negotiations, and he would address the concerns noted by 
City Attorney Gatti. 
 
 

Page 16 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 5 of 7 

 
Main Motion: To Authorize Action Memorandum No. 17-041 as Amended 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

Primary Amendment #1: To Change Authorization for City Manager to Negotiate the 
Agreement and the Mayor to Execute an Agreement 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
Item 4 – Action Memorandum No. 17-042: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
New Temporary Lease Agreement with Alaska Air Fuel, Inc., for Lease Lot 2, Block 3, of Apron D, Palmer 
Municipal Airport for the Purpose of Operating an Air/Ground Fuel and Cargo Business 
 
Council Member Hanson requested a staff report. City Manager Wallace provided an overview of the 
development of the lease and its provisions. 
 

Main Motion: To Authorize Action Memorandum No. 17-042 as Amended 
Moved by: Carrington 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Primary Amendment #1: To Change the Summary Statement’s Last Paragraph to Include 

Alaska Air Fuel (AAF) has 14 Days to Execute the Lease and Move 
Their Operations 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
Item 5 – Action Memorandum No. 17-043: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 
$3,000.00 to the Palmer Museum of History and Art to Support Midsummer Garden and Art Faire 
 

Main Motion: To Authorize Action Memorandum No. 17-043 as Amended 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried by a 6-1 roll call vote 

In favor: Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: Best 

 
 
 

Page 17 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 6 of 7 

Primary Amendment #1: To Reduce the Grant Amount from $3,000.00 to $2,000.00. 
Moved by: Fuller 

Seconded by: Combs 
Action: Motion carried by a 6-1 roll call vote 

In favor: Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: Best 

 
Council Member Best spoke against the reduced grant amount. He noted three-fourths of the budget for the 
Community Grants would be depleted after only the first half of the year. He also pointed out the cost ratio 
for the anticipated participants was higher than for other similar events, and as a result, he felt he had to 
vote no. 
 
Council Member Hanson noted the original intention of the Council Community Grant Program was to provide 
funding to “fledgling” organizations. He emphasized the need to remove eligibility of the Downtown Merchants 
from the grant program and instead provide support to them through a specific budgeted line item. 
 
J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
BED Working Draft of Economic Development Strategic Plan Update 2017 provided by LaMarr Anderson 
FAA Grant Offer for the Runway Project provided by City Manager Wallace 
 
K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent: 

• Requested clarification on the lease rate for the new lease with Alaska Air Fuel. 
 
Eugene Carl Haberman: 

• Addressed appropriate bid processes; and  
• Emphasized the need to provide opportunity for the public to be heard. 

 
L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Carrington: 

• Recognized a new Voter Precinct Map was mounted on the wall of the Council Chambers. 
 
Council Member LaFrance: 

• Requested to be excused from the July 11, 2017, meeting to attend a family wedding.  
 
The Council had no objections. 
 
Council Member Best: 

• Thanked everyone for indulging him for the evening. 
 
Council Member Hanson: 

• Recognized efforts by all members of the Council for the magnificent Colony Days event; 
• Reminded everyone of the skydivers out at the airport; and 
• Wished the City Manager a Happy 30th Anniversary, today. 

 
Council Member Fuller: 

• Echoed Council Member Hanson’s comments; and 
• Thanked Public Works and Ailis Vann for their hard work over the weekend. 

 

Page 18 of 128



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 13, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 7 of 7 

Deputy Mayor Combs: 
• Commended the Council for their participation in Colony Days; 
• Reminded everyone of Flag Day and the U.S Army’s Birthday; and 
• Commented on the Fly-In and the Memorial Day Celebration. 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 9:28 pm. 
 
Approved this 11th day of July, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  

Page 19 of 128



Page 20 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

1
Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Upgrades:  MMBR and Secondary 
Clarifiers to meet EPA/ADEC permit 
requirement per Consent Decree

$9,000,000- $14,000,000 
(revised estimate after 65%~ 
$12,610,290)

August 2020

$842,107                            
as of January

Funding Sources  On hand: State Grant 
$2.5M   State Grant: $145k   Enterprise 
or GF: $600,000                        Applied 
for:    ADEC grant: $1M     USDA Loan: 
$4.8   USDA Grant: $3.5

a
Engineering/Design to EPA and 
ADEC  (65%) 900,000$                                        December Complete $842,107 APPROVED

b
Material Bid (MMBR system 
components) December Complete

c
Material Bid Award (MMBR system 
components) 1,100,000$                                     December Complete $918,760 APPROVED

d Financing options(USDA and/or 
interim financing)

January/February Complete State Grant for FY 18 not available-GF 
loan

e Permitting from DEC and State Fire 
Marshall

February Complete DEC permit and Fire Marshall review 
approved and on hand

f Construction Bid Doc (95%/Final) to 
USDA

February Complete
Submtted to USDA for review

g
Construction Bid

April Complete
New bid $9.5M April 28

h Bond Resolution to Council February Complete

i
Construction Bid Award (pending 
financing) to Council 9,500,000$                                     May Complete NOIA and NTP published

j
Townhall on financing and 
construction schedule July

Discuss construction schedule, 
noise/dust mitigation, financing

k Construction Commence June Started Contractor Mob underway

l
Secondary Clarifier Construction 
Commence UNK

m MMBR System on line for testing July 2018
n MMBR System tesing complete April 2019
o Secondary Clarifiers on line August 2020

Page 21 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

2 Rehabilitate RW 16/34 & Related 
Improvements

$10,000,000- $11,500,000 October 2017
Pre-Liminary 
Application 

Approved by FAA

Funding Sources  On hand: State Grant: 
$400K  COP: $225k  Anticipated FAA: 
$9.375M - $10.781M

a Engineering/Design in 2 Phases
 Phase 1 $237,913
Phase 2 $182,579

Total $420,492 
May-17

Phase I nearing 
completion

$237, 913 APPROVED

b Project Initiation December Complete

c Stakeholder Coordination December Complete

d  Surveying & Mapping Jan-17 Ongoing

e Geotechnical Evaluation December Ongoing

f Engineer's Design Report (35%) Jan-17 Complete
EDR 35% to FAA for Review & 
Comment 01/10/2017

g Phase 2 Design funding approval Jan-17 Complete $182,759 Approved

h Construction Safety & Phasing Plan Mar-17 Complete

i Final Design and submission to FAA Apr-17 Complete Approved by FAA

j Townhall on project June Complete FAA Fly-in
k Bid & Grant Assistance Apr-17 On going With FAA for final approval
l Bids Due May-17 Complete Due May 18

m
Award & Grant Acceptance from 
FAA $7,827,300.00 June Anticipated soon

n Construction Mobilization June
o Runway Closed August 2017

p Supplemental FAA Funding
$1,406,250.00 August 2017

q Supplemental COP Funding $93,750.00 August 2017

r Project Completion November Ribbon cutting ceremony 

If other Airport Sponsor $ Becomes 
Available will require City Match 

approval

Page 22 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

3 Replace boiler in the Palmer Library. $50,000.00 September 2017 $48,798.00

a Engineering and Design $4,900.00 In hand Complete $4,900
Engineering documents have been 
completed by T3 Alaska

b General Contractor Bid $44,100.00 Complete Awarded $43,898.00 Bid awarded to Pinnicle Mechanical

c Project work and completion 1-Sep-17 Scheduling

Mechanical eqpt is on order and 
project is expected to begin mid-July. 
Conducted Pre-Con meeting  and boiler 
room walk thru with Pinnancle on 
22Jun17. Project is expected to take 2 
weeks, start to finish.

Page 23 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

4 Replace heating system in the 
Palmer FSS. 

$30,000.00 September 2017 $10,000.00

a Engineering and Design $10,000.00 February 2017 Complete $10,000 Documents are complete.

b General Contractor Bid $20,000.00 TBD Not Started
Awaiting FAA scheduling of asbestos 
abatement

c Project work and completion October 2017 Not Started

Will establish start and completion 
dates with winning contractor after 
bidding process is complete. Plan to go 
out for bids by mid-July. This project 
will be tied in with the FSS required 
FAA upgrade project.

Page 24 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

5 Palmer FSS interior improvements $54,500.00 September 2017
Awaiting new lease 

signing by FAA
$8,500.00

a Architectural Services and Design $8,500.00 February 2017 Complete $8,500 Documents are complete

b General Contractor Bid $46,000.00 TBD Not Started
Awaiting FAA scheduling of asbestos 
abatement

c Project work and completion October 2017 Not Started

Will establish start and completion 
dates with winning contractor after 
bidding process is complete. Plan to go 
out for bids by mid-July. This project 
will be tied in with the FSS required 
FAA upgrade project.

Page 25 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

6 City Hall and Fire Station 3-1 Parking 
Lot Upgrade

$100,000.00 Aug 2017

a Engineering and Design ~$15,000 Complete

HDL has completed design work for the 
Fire Station and is still making 
adjustments to the City Hall parking 
lot. Expect documents for bid by mid-
July.

b Paving Contractor Bid $85,000.00 May 2017 Not Started
Will attempt to coordinate with Airport 
Runway project if possible. 

c Project work and completion Aug 2017 Not Started
Project will be broken into 2x phases. 
1) Fire Station driveway 2) Front and 
employee parking lots 

Page 26 of 128



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

7
Bogard Road Booster Station to 
provide adequate pressure and 
flow for the western portion of 
Bogard Rd Water Main Extension 
Project.

$1,420,000.00 TBD
Land Prep and 

Engineering 
Drawings Working

$118,595.00

Through use of remaining grant funds 
(14-DC-125), PW has contracted HDL 
Engineering for Preliminary 
Engineering and site preparation.

a
HDL conduct preliminary 
engineering work and booster sation 
site prep

$118,595.00 July 2017 Working $118,595.00
Construction and Engineering 
drawings/specs are complete. 

b Project out for bid accepting bids
Project is currently open for bids. Pre-
bid is scheduled for 11 July     Bid 
opening scheduled for 20 July

Page 27 of 128



Project Description
Estimated 

Budget/Cost
Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

7
ADA Sidewalk 
installation of 
designated driveways 
and curb corners in the 
downtown Palmer area

$100,000.00 In progress

Contract for this phase of 
the ADA Sidewalk project 
was awarded to 
Dirtworks. The project is 
underway at this time.

Page 28 of 128



 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Palmer City Council 
FROM: Norma I. Alley, MMC   
SUBJECT: City Clerk’s Report for the July 11, 2017, Council Meeting 
 
 

1. The monthly Boards & Commissions attendance spreadsheets are attached. 
a. AAC 
b. BED 
c. PRCRAB 
d. P&ZC 

 
2. Election Officials – Poll Workers Needed 

 
I received an email from the MSB Clerk’s Office and we are in need of volunteers to 
work the Polls on Election Day.  We have had a couple of volunteers at Precinct 11-070 
and 11-075 retire leaving a gap in the needed five volunteers at each precinct.  This 
decline in volunteers is in many of the precincts all over the Borough.  If you know of 
anyone willing to volunteer their time on October 3 starting at 6:30 a.m., please 
encourage them to contact the Deputy Borough Clerk Jessica Kilborn at 861-8683, 
myself at 761-1321, or go to the Borough’s website at www.matsugov.us/elections.  
Attached is the application and cover letter with more information. 
 

3. Upcoming Meetings 
 
The tentative meetings schedule is attached. 
 

Tentative Future Meeting Schedule 
Meeting 

Date 
Meeting 

Type Time Notes 

July 25 Special 6 pm Audit Report 

July 25 Regular 7 pm  

Aug 8 Regular 7 pm  

Aug 22 Regular 7 pm  

Sept 12 Regular 7 pm  

Sept 26 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 9 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 10 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 17 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Oct 24 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
  
  

Phone: (907) 745-3271 
Direct: (907) 761-1321 

Fax: (907) 745-0930 
  

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, Alaska 99645-6952 

www.cityofpalmer.org  

  
  

Page 29 of 128

http://www.matsugov.us/elections


Oct 24 Regular 7 pm  

Nov 7 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 14 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 14 Regular 7 pm  

Nov 21 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 28 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 28 Regular 7 pm  

Dec 5 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Dec 12 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Dec 12 Regular 7 pm Budget Adoption 

Dec 26 Regular 7 pm  

Jan 9, ‘18 Regular 7 pm  

 
 

Page 30 of 128



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2017-0711\Attendance Report AAC 2017-06.docx 

City of Palmer 
Airport Advisory Commission Members 

 
PMC 2.25.020. There is created a city airport advisory commission which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term 
Expires 

A John Lee Oct. 2019 
B Kenneth More Oct. 2019 
C Jeff Helmericks Oct. 2017 
D Andrew Weaver Oct. 2018 
E Joyce Momarts Oct. 2017 
F Shannon Jardine Oct. 2019 
G Allan Linn Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.25.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 
 

2017 Attendance Record 
    

Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
* 

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Lee             
More             
Helmericks U            
Weaver    E         
Momarts E            
Jardine             
Linn             

 
 2016 Attendance Record 

    
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
Lee             
More             
Helmericks             
Weaver           E  
Momarts E        E    
Jardine             
Linn             

 
  * Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 - Present 
E - Excused 
U - Unexcused Absence 
V - Vacant 

Page 31 of 128



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2017-0711\Attendance Report BED 2017-06.docx 

City of Palmer 
Board of Economic Development Members 

 
PMC 2.30.010.A. There is created a city board of economic development which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A LaMarr Anderson Oct. 2017 
D Christopher Chappel Oct. 2018 
B Peter Christopher Oct. 2019 
E Janet Kincaid Oct. 2019 
C Lorie Koppenberg Oct. 2018 
F Tendra Nicodemus Oct. 2017 
G Dusty Silva Oct. 2018 
CC David Fuller Oct. 2017 
PZC Not Yet Appointed Oct. 2017 

 
PMC 2.30.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2017 Attendance Record 
 
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Mar 

** 
Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Anderson E             
Chappel              
Christopher    E   E       
Kincaid  E            
Koppenberg   E    E       
Nicodemus      E        
Silva              
Fuller              
PZ&C V V V V V V        

  2016 Attendance Record 
    

Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
Anderson *     E       
Chappel *          E  
Christopher             
Kincaid             
Koppenberg * E   E      E  
Nicodemus * E    E E E   E  
Silva *       E     
Fuller             
PZ&C V V V V V V V V V V V V 

 
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant

 

Page 32 of 128



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2017-0711\Attendance Report PRCRAB 2017-06.docx 

City of Palmer 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory  

Board Members 
 

PMC 2.22.010.A. There is created a city board for parks, recreation and cultural resources which shall consist of seven 
members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A Stephanie Allen Oct. 2017 
F Meggie Aube-Trammell Oct. 2018 
D Shannon Connelly Oct. 2019 
B Jo Ehmann Oct. 2018 
C Dot Helm Oct. 2017 
E Jan Newman Oct. 2017 
G Fran Seager-Boss Oct. 2017 

 
PMC 2.22.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2017 Attendance Record 
    
Board 
Member 

Jan Feb Mar 
 

Mar 
** 

Apr May 
* 

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Allen E   E          
Aube-Trammell              
Connelly              
Ehmann       E       
Helm              
Newman  E  E          
Seager-Boss   E E          

 
2016 Attendance Record 

    
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
Allen   U E  E       
Aube-Trammell         E    
Connelly             
Ehmann   E   E  E     
Helm             
Newman  E           
Seager-Boss   E  E     U U  

 
  * Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  
E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant  

Page 33 of 128



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2017-0711\Attendance Report PZC 2017-06.docx 

City of Palmer 
Planning & Zoning Advisory Commission Members 

 
PMC 2.20.010.A. There is created a city planning and zoning commission which shall consist of seven members who shall 
be nominated by the mayor and confirmed by the city council. All members must be residents of the city. 
 

Seat Commission Member Term 
Expires 

A Gena Ornquist Oct. 2017 
B Erik Cordero-Giorgana Oct. 2019 
C Merry Maxwell Oct. 2018 
D Kristy Thom Bernier Oct. 2019 
E Dan Lucas Oct. 2017 
F David Petty Oct. 2018 
G Douglas Cruthers Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.20.321.C. Cause for removal. In addition, a commissioner may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The commissioner is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The commissioner 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2017 Attendance Record 
    
Commissioner Jan Feb Mar Apr 

** 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Ornquist  *            
Cordero-Giorgana  * E U U  E       
Maxwell  *  E  E        
Thom Bernier  *   E  E       
Lucas  *            
Petty  *            
Cruthers E * E           

 
 2016 Attendance Record 

    
Commissioner Jan Feb Mar Apr 

** 
May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Ornquist             
Cordero-Giorgana           U E 
Maxwell  *   E     E E  
Thom Bernier             
Lucas  *     E      
Petty  *           
Cruthers  *    U       

 
  * Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  
E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant 

Page 34 of 128



 

 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
2017 ELECTION OFFICIAL APPLICATION 

Borough Clerk’s Office 
350 E. Dahlia Avenue 

Palmer, AK  99645 
907-861-8683 phone | 907-861-7845 fax 

www.matsugov.us  

Thank you for your interest in serving as an election official for the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 
Every election, hundreds of Borough residents play an important role in the election by helping to 
operate polling places. Election officials put a face on the election process and work hard to 
ensure their neighbors can vote with ease, while helping us to safeguard the process so all 
Borough residents have confidence in the election results.  
 
Election officials are recommended by the Borough Clerk to the Borough Assembly for 
appointment. Election officials are responsible for carrying out the election process under the 
direction and supervision of the Borough Clerk. Qualifications and general duties are described 
below. Training and compensation are provided.  
 
Applications must be submitted annually. If you are interested in serving, please complete, sign,  
and return the attached application to the Borough Clerk’s Office by May 29, 2017, at 350 E. 
Dahlia Avenue, Palmer, AK 99645, email to Jessica.kilborn@matsugov.us, or fax it to 861-7845.  
 
Electronically fillable applications are available on our website at 
http://www.matsugov.us/elections or by request via email to Jessica.kilborn@matsugov.us.  
 
Applicants selected to serve will be contacted in August to confirm their precinct assignment and 
training schedule.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Borough Clerk’s Office at 861-8683. 
 
Qualifications include: 

 Must be a registered voter of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 
 Must be available to work on Election Day from 6:30 a.m. to approximately 9 p.m. 
 Must be available to work for a few hours on the day before the election to set up the 

precinct for voting, if needed. 
 Must be able to lift 25 lbs. 
 Must be available to attend a mandatory training session for approximately  

2.5 hours prior to Election Day.  
 Must have transportation to the polling place.  
 Must take an oath that you will honestly, faithfully, and promptly perform the duties of an 

election official, according to law, and you will diligently endeavor to prevent the violation 
of any provision of law in conducting the election, and if you provide assistance to a voter, 
you will not divulge how the voter cast their ballot. 

 Must be dedicated, cooperative, and professional. 
 
General duties include:  

 Prepare, open, and close the polling place. 
 Find voter information on the voter register. 
 Issue and accept official ballots. 
 Assist voters in any phase of the voting process.  

 
 
Lonnie McKechnie, CMC    Jessica Kilborn, CMC 
Borough Clerk      Deputy Clerk   
 
 
 
 Page 35 of 128

http://www.matsugov.us/
mailto:Jessica.kilborn@matsugov.us
http://www.matsugov.us/elections
mailto:Jessica.kilborn@matsugov.us


MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
2017 ELECTION OFFICIAL APPLICATION 

Borough Clerk’s Office 
350 E. Dahlia Avenue 

Palmer, AK  99645 
907-861-8683 phone | 907-861-7845 fax 

www.matsugov.us 

1. SELECT THE ELECTION(S) FOR WHICH YOU ARE AVAILABLE TO WORK 
 Regular Borough Election (Tuesday, October 3, 2017) 
 All Borough Elections in Calendar Year 2017 (i.e., Special Borough Elections) 

2.    APPLICANT INFORMATION - PRINT CLEARLY AND LEGIBLY 
Last Name:  
 

First Name:  Middle Initial:  
 

Cell Phone:  Home Phone: Work Phone: 
Email Address:  
Residence address (include street name and house number):  
 
City: Zip: 
Mailing address, if different from your residence address: 
 
City: Zip: 
What position(s) are you most interested in working?  

  Precinct Chairperson     Review Board                     Absentee Voting Official  
  Poll Worker                                           Canvass Board                  

What area of the Borough or to which precinct do you wish to be assigned, if any?  
(Due to the large number of precincts, we are unable to accommodate all requests):  
 
Have you ever served as an election official for the Borough?  

 YES  If yes, how long? ________     
 NO   If no, what experience do you have that will help you to successfully serve as an election official? 

 
 
Have you ever served as an election official for the Alaska State Division of Elections or another municipality?  

 YES  If yes, who did you work for?__________________________________________  
 NO      

3. CONFLICTS (Attach a separate sheet, if necessary) 
Are you aware of any conflict of interest with an issue or candidate that may appear on the ballot that could be 
considered incompatible with your service as an election official, such as, a candidate is a member of your 
immediate family or you are actively involved in a political campaign?   

 NO      YES   If yes, please explain the conflict.  
 
Have you been convicted of any crime, excluding traffic tickets? 

 NO      YES  If yes, what were you convicted of?  
4. CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE  
I certify that the information contained in this application is true, accurate, and complete to the best of my 
knowledge. 
Signature: ___________________________________________ Date: ________________________ 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Voter No.: Registered Precinct: Date Received: 
Precinct Assignment: ___________ 

 Chairperson         
 Poll Worker 

Other Assignments: 
 Absentee Voting Official - Location: ___________ Shift: __________ 
 Review Board      Canvass Board   

Database Entry Date: ___________ Notes:  
(Jan. 2017) 

Page 36 of 128

http://www.matsugov.us/


Mayor’s Memo 
Council Meeting report – July 11, 2017 

 

 

OUTREACH: 

  Rebel Riders 4-H Club – concession stand dedication 
 
   
UP COMING EVENTS: 

  July 8 – Midsummer Festival – downtown Palmer 

 Town Hall meeting on Sewer Project 
 Outreach to High school age student(s) for Boards and 

Commission 
 Mayor’s Minute on Radio – Sept 22 
 Mayor/Manager’s meeting – July 20 – Palmer; August 24 Wasilla  
 Mat Su Miners/City of Palmer – July 26 – 7 pm 
 Manager, Mayor, Clerk & Attorney agenda - July 13/July 27  
 United Way/Seahawks – Elks July 10 – 7 to 9 pm; $50.00 per 

ticket 
 Job Corps graduation – August 18 – 2 pm  

Palmer Pride – July 28 - ideas – Citizen of the Year; Business(es) of the 
Year, Beautiful Garden – your input is welcome – Palmer Depot 

Read the Palmer Buzz now in the Frontiersman  

Pick up your copy of the Mat-su Bike Map  

 

PENDING ITEMS –  

  Flag Pole by Library 

  Sales Tax proposal by Mat Su Borough assembly – on council 
agenda- July 11 and Borough Assembly on August 1. 

 

Leaders choose the right things to do 

and managers do those things. 

Page 37 of 128



Page 38 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 17-008 

 
Subject: Adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and Donation 
Policy 
 
Agenda of:  April 25, 2017 – Introduction 
 May 9, 2017 – 1st Public Hearing 
 May 23, 2017 – 2nd Public Hearing 
 June 11, 2017 – 3rd Public Hearing 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Community Development Director Sandra Garley 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

X  Community Development   4/3/17 
  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 39 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 17-008 adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, and Outdoor Facilities 

Memorial and Donation Policy – Substitute Ordinance and Ordinance Currently on the Floor 
 Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board Resolution No. 16-002 
 Resolution No. 05-028 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards, and procedures for the acceptance, 
installation, and care of donated park improvements, either as a result of a cash or physical property 
donation.  When the City is approached by families or other community members who wish to donate 
items for installation in a public space, the City staff should have a specific set of guidelines to use in 
processing the requested donation or memorial. 
 
The Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board has developed criteria that will ensure that 
there is a uniform standard for items being placed on City property. Having a set of guidelines will also 
assist a family or organization that wants to make a donation in making a decision on what to donate. 
 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) 12.24.040 authorizes the manager to promulgate regulations for 
“maintenance or other reasons.”   
 
Palmer Municipal Code 2.07.030 requires Ordinances of less than general and permanent nature, and not 
intended to become a part of the code, shall conform to the requirements of PMC 2.07.010. 
 
On May 23, 2017, the City Council passed a motion directing staff to remove references of memorials; 
replace references to purchasing equipment/elements with donating equipment/elements where 
applicable; and removing the last sentence in 4.B. and setting a substitute ordinance to be presented at 
a 3rd Public Hearing.  What is presented before the Council tonight reflects these changes. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 17-008 adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, and Outdoor Facilities Memorial 
and Donation Policy. 
 

Page 40 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 17-008-S 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, 
and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and Donation Policy 
 

WHEREAS, the City has public land that citizens enjoy throughout the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, many citizens and visitors desire to assist and enhance these public lands 

through donatingon and memorialization items; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board developed and 

recommends a standard operating procedure for accepting and maintaining donations for public 
use at recreational and outdoor facilities. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This is a non-code ordinance which adopts regulations for the 
Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and Donation Policy.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. The City of Palmer Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and 
Donation Policy is hereby adopted as follows: 
 
1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards, and procedures for the acceptance, 
installation, and care of donated park improvements, either as a result of a cash or physical 
property donation. These donations may include, but are not limited to, park benches, picnic 
tables, bicycle racks, trees, monuments, banners, interpretive signs, public art, and other types 
of park and trails accessories. This policy does not apply to buildings or land. The City desires to 
encourage donations while at the same time manage aesthetic impacts and mitigate on-going 
maintenance cost. 

 

Introduced by:  City Manager Wallace 
Date: April 25, 2017 

1st Public Hearing: May 9, 2017 
2nd Public Hearing: May 23, 2017 
3rd Public Hearing: July 11, 2017 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 41 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 2 of 7 

Donations will be incorporated into upcoming or ongoing park improvement projects. The 
development of public facilities is expected to be the result of careful planning and quality 
construction.  In addition, public facilities are expected to be maintained to a standard acceptable 
to the community. 

 
Guidelines established by this policy will apply to all donations made after the effective date of 
this policy.  This policy is also designed to provide guidelines for individuals or groups should they 
desire to decorate, landscape or adorn a donation, such as a tree, bench, or picnic table on City 
owned or City maintained property.  

 
Standards established by this policy will apply to purchased donated equipment, installation 
techniques, donation plaques, decoration and long term care of all donations made after the 
adoption of this policy. Materials and design of such donations shall be reviewed by the Palmer 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board (the Board). The Board shall forward 
their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed donation to City Council for final 
action. 

 
2. STANDARDS FOR DONATIONS 

A. Acquisition or Purchase: The City and the community have an interest in ensuring that 
park and trail elements purchased donated and installed be of high quality related to style, 
appearance, durability and ease of maintenance. The Board will be responsible for review 
and approval of material and design of all park elements. 
 

B. Appearance and Aesthetics:  The City and the community have an interest in ensuring 
the best appearance and aesthetic quality of their public facilities. Park elements and/or 
their associated donation acknowledgments should reflect the character of the park or 
facility. Prior to installation, the Board must determine that all park elements will be 
installed in such a manner that will not substantially change the character of a facility or 
its intended use. 
 

C. Cost:  The City has an interest in ensuring that the donor covers the full-cost of the 
purchase donation, installation, and maintenance for the expected life cycle of donated 
park elements. A separate fee schedule is maintained in which the City will detail costs for 
donations, installation, and maintenance. The City also has an interest in ensuring that 
ongoing maintenance costs do not negatively impact the resources available for 
maintenance of other City park facilities. Consequently, the City will assess, at the time of 
purchase donation, a charge sufficient to cover anticipated ongoing maintenance of 
donated park elements during their expected life expectancy. 
 

D. Maintenance: Donated park elements and/or their associated donation plaques, become 
City property.  Accordingly, the City has the duty to maintain the donation only for the 
expected life cycle of the donation. (See Section 11 for more information on life cycle.) If 
current information is on file, the donor will be informed and given the opportunity to take 
further action at the expiration of the original life cycle. 
 

E. Repair:  The community has an interest in ensuring that all park elements remain in good 
repair. In addition, the public has an interest in ensuring that the short and long-term 
repair costs are reasonable.  Repair parts and materials must be readily available. Donated 

Page 42 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 3 of 7 

park elements must be of high quality to ensure a long life, be resistant to the elements, 
wear and tear, and to acts of vandalism. 
 

3. PROCEDURE FOR MAKING A DONATION 
The City’s Community Development office will manage all donations located on City park property, 
with the assistance of the Parks Maintenance Crew. 

 
A. Application: The donor must contact the Community Development office to determine 

whether a donation may be accepted based upon criteria contained in this policy. If a 
donation can be accepted, the donor will complete an application form. Applications are 
available through the mail or in person at the Community Development office.   
 

4. CRITERIA FOR ACCEPTANCE 
A. Park Plan:  To accept donation of a park element for a specific park facility, a park plan 

must exist showing the available locations for park elements.  If no plan exists then a 
donation may be made to another facility. If a plan exists, but does not identify a particular 
park element proposed for donation, the City may accept the donation under certain 
conditions.  Under this circumstance, the donation must 1) meet a true need of the facility, 
2) not interfere with the intended current or future use or function of the facility and 3) 
not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the 
donation. In the opinion of the City, a facility may be determined to be fully developed 
and the opportunity for donations would not be available. 
 

B. Donation Plaques: Donation plaques, as approved by the Board, are to be directly 
affixed to the donation and/or, are to be made of bronze and purchased through the City.  
Donation plaques will be a maximum 5” x 7” or 2” x 18” inches in size (depending on the 
donated item), utilize either “Palatino” or “Cheltenham Light” lettering and numbers, have 
a leatherette or travertine background texture, be of dark brown oxide stain and be 
manufactured by a City approved vendor to ensure highest quality, life and durability. In 
cases where bronze plaques are not feasible, the Board may approve alternative types. 
The Board must approve all text and graphics for donation plaques. 
 

In park bench applications, the donation plaque will be affixed to the front of the seat back of 
the bench. In picnic table applications, the donation a plaque will be affixed to the table top. In 
tree installation applications, the donation plaque will be installed on a post or on a stone next to 
the base of the tree. 

 
C. Notification: It shall be the responsibility of the donor to provide the Community 

Development office with a current address for purposes of notification regarding their 
donation. For the purposes of notification, the City will send a certified letter to the donor, 
notifying the donor of changes related to the status of their donation (i.e. a need to 
remove, relocate, or comply with conditions set forth in this policy). 
 

5. PARK BENCHES, PICNIC TABLES, & BICYCLE RACKS 
Park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks, and playground components may be placed in locations 
approved by the Board in accordance with an available site plan approved by City Council. Items 
donated must be of a product approved by the Board, and these items become City property at 
time of purchase donation. 

Page 43 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 4 of 7 

 
A. Bicycle Specifications: 

1. Bicycle Rack Dimensions - 
 

Height:  36” max. – 30” min. 
Materials: Stainless steel or galvanized round or square pipe  

[2-3/8 in OD, 0.154-inch wall, Schedule 40 steel pipe]  
[1-5/8 inch OD, 0.140 wall Schedule 40 steel pipe] 

Safety:  1. Comply with ADA Standards – no overhangs or protrusions that 
could be difficult for visually impaired in the walkway or that may 
cause tripping hazard; 

2. Minimum 10” gap at the bottom of the rack to allow space for pedal; 
3. Space gaps on the rack shall be larger than 9” and smaller than 3.5”  

Locking: 1. Must provide minimum of two-point connection between the bicycle 
frame and the rack; 

2. Locking points must be a minimum of 1 inch and a maximum of 4 
inches 

 
2. Required Bicycle Rack Clearances on Sidewalks - 

 
Description Minimum 

Clearance (feet) 
Object 

Bicycle Rack Clearances 
from other 

Sidewalk Objects 

0 In-ground utility pull box – allow   
      enough room to remove cover 

2 Tree or tree well; newspaper rack;  
      trash can; curb cut/driveway 

6 Bicycle rack  (along curb) 
3 Bicycle rack  (parallel to other rack) 

5 Fire hydrant; stand pipe  
       (near entrances) 

10 Building entrance 
5 Street light pole; Traffic sign pole  
2 Sign pole  (mid-block) 

Bicycle Rack Clearances 
from Parking Spaces 

2 Parallel car parking 
5 Perpendicular car parking 

 
3. Sidewalk Width Requirements for Bicycle Parking - 
 

Description Minimum 
Clearance (feet) 

Location 

Curbside bicycle rack 9 Between curb face and building or 
     café seating (leaving 6’ walkway) 

Building side bicycle rack 1 Between bicycle rack and building  
 

  

Page 44 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 5 of 7 

 
B. Bench Specifications: 

 
Bench Type Framing Seating 

Contour wooden park bench 
with back (6-ft.) 

Heavy duty 2-3/8” 
O. D. pipe fame 

Planks (2” x 4”) with 8 slats of 
untreated wood, or pressure-treated 

planking options 

Wooden park bench without 
back (6-ft.) 

Heavy duty 2-3/8” 
O. D. pipe welded 

framework and    
brace 1-5/16” O. 

D. pipe  

Wood planks (2” x 4”); finished seat 
dimensions 15” wide by 18” high 

 

 
C. Picnic Table Specifications: 

 
Table Framing 

Rectangular expanded metal 
table with backless bench  

(6-ft. or 8-ft.) 
2-3/8" O.D. steel tubing frame to create a sturdy base 

 
D. Options: 
The Board may recommend alternative sizes and types of park bench or picnic table based 
on the location proposed and the City’s needs to the City Council. 

 
6. TREES 
Landscaping and plant selection for park facilities is critical due to the wind conditions, soils, and 
winter weather in Palmer. Accordingly, location, size and specie of tree or trees proposed for 
donation shall be limited to those reviewed and recommended by the Board. The Board shall 
forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed tree(s) to City Council for 
final action. 

 
Trees will only be accepted for areas with suitable soils for the species and areas that have access 
to public water supply in place. 
 

A. Minimum Tree Size: 
Coniferous trees shall have a minimum height of six feet (6’); and 
Deciduous trees shall have a minimum caliper (diameter or thickness) of two inches (2”). 
 

B. Prohibited Plant Species: 
Acer platanoides   Norway Maple 
Aegopodium podagraria  Bishop's Weed  
Berberis  sp.      Barberry  
Caragana arborescens   Siberian Pea Shrub  
Eleagnus sp     Russian Olive  
Euonymus alatus    Burning Bush 
Fallopia japonica   Japanese Knotweed 
Ligistrum sp    Privet 
Lonicera japonica   Japanese Honeysuckle 

Page 45 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 6 of 7 

Polygonum sp    Knotweed 
Populus alba    White Poplar 
Prunus padus     European  Bird Cherry  
Rosa multiflora    Multiflora  Rose  
Sorbaria sorbifolia   False Spirea 
Sorbus aucuparia   European Mountain Ash 
Viburnum opulus   European Cranberry Bush 
 

7. MONUMENTS 
Upright monuments or monuments resembling those typically found in cemeteries may not be 
installed at any City park facility. Exceptions to this policy are monuments installed by the City 
commemorating the history and/or dedication of a park facility. 

 
8. INTERPRETIVE  & OTHER DONATED PARK SIGNS 
Interpretive and other donated park signs as recommended by the Board. The Board shall forward 
their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed sign to City Council for final action. 
Signs shall be consistent with any adopted City way finding standards may be installed at  sites  
that  are  appropriate  for  describing  the  history, geology, environment, and flora and fauna of 
a particular area.  Interpretive signs shall be of a size that is in keeping with the character of the 
site.  Interpretive signs shall be of a design that meets requirements for access to the disabled. 
Interpretive signs shall be designed in such a manner that is consistent with other interpretive 
signs on the site. Interpretive signs shall be constructed of materials that are of high quality, 
vandal resistant, and able to withstand harsh environmental conditions.  

 
9. PUBLIC ART 
Donated public art is subject to full review by the Board. The Board shall forward their 
recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed art to City Council for final action. 

 
10. OTHER DONATIONS 
There may be donations possible, other than those expressly listed or contained within this policy. 
The Board may, at their discretion, review any donation proposal and forward a recommendation. 
The City may accept those donations subject to approval by the City Council.  

 
11. CONDITIONS 

A. Installation: Installation of donated park elements equipment will be scheduled at a 
time and date as determined by Pparks Mmaintenance Ccrew so as not to unnecessarily 
interfere with routine park maintenance activities. 
 
Placement of the memorial or equipment may not pose a safety risk to users of the public 
space or impede mowing, drainage or public access.  
 

B. Removal and/or Relocation: This section applies to both existing and new donations.  
The City reserves the right to remove and/or relocate donated park elements equipment 
and their associated donation acknowledgments/memorial plaques, when they interfere 
with site safety, maintenance or construction activities. In accordance with previously 
stated procedures in this policy, the City will send a registered letter to each identifiable 
donor notifying the donor of any action related to the disposition or relocation of the 
donation. In certain situations, such as safety or emergency situations, the notification 

Page 46 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008-S Page 7 of 7 

may be made after the action taken.  In the event a donation must be permanently 
removed; the City will, in best effort, seek an alternative location consistent with this 
policy. If no such location can be found, the information contained on the memorial may 
be, at the donor’s request, located on a memorial plaque set aside for this purpose at a 
designated location. 

 
12. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
The long-term care and maintenance of donated park elements is important to both the donor 
and the City. 

 
A. Life Cycle Care Fund: The establishment of the Life Cycle Care Fund ensures that the 

City will care for the donation for the estimated life of the donation, or until such time the 
City determines that the memorial donation must be removed and/or relocated for 
unforeseen circumstances. The establishment of a Life Cycle Care Fund applies to all 
donated park elements installed after the adoption of this policy. 
 
The fund is established with the intent of providing a regular revenue source dedicated 
and sufficient to reasonably maintain future donations for the duration of their expected 
life cycle. The cost of a donation will include the cost of purchase and installation, and the 
funds estimated to be sufficient, based upon the expected life cycle, for maintenance of 
the donated item.  The expected life cycle, routine maintenance and element costs are 
identified in a separate schedule.  This schedule is maintained administratively and may 
be modified from time to time to ensure that sufficient resources are available to maintain 
donations. 
 
Accordingly, the City will determine the level of maintenance required for the donated 
property based upon available budget funding and the type of care needed to reasonably 
maintain the donation. 
 
At the end of the life-cycle term, the donor may choose to extend the life-cycle term by 
paying for the current value of a new donation if deemed necessary by the Board and its 
associated maintenance cost.  The City reserves the right to seek a new donor for the 
donation at the end of the established life cycle should the original donor choose not to 
renew the donation, or if the City has not been able to contact the original donor. 

 
Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 17-008-S shall take effect upon adoption by the 

City of Palmer City Council.  
 
Adopted this _____ day of _____, 2017.  
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 47 of 128



Page 48 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 17-008 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Adopting a City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, 
and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and Donation Policy 
 

WHEREAS, the City has public land that citizens enjoy throughout the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, many citizens and visitors desire to assist and enhance these public lands 

through donation and memorialization items; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board developed and 

recommends a standard operating procedure for accepting and maintaining donations for public 
use at recreational and outdoor facilities. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This is a non-code ordinance which adopts regulations for the 
Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and Donation Policy.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. The City of Palmer Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Memorial and 
Donation Policy is hereby adopted as follows: 
 
1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards, and procedures for the acceptance, 
installation, and care of donated park improvements, either as a result of a cash or physical 
property donation. These donations may include, but are not limited to, park benches, picnic 
tables, bicycle racks, trees, monuments, banners, interpretive signs, public art, and other types 
of park and trails accessories. This policy does not apply to buildings or land. The City desires to 
encourage donations while at the same time manage aesthetic impacts and mitigate on-going 
maintenance cost. 

 

Introduced by:  City Manager Wallace 
Date: April 25, 2017 

1st Public Hearing: May 9, 2017 
2nd Public Hearing: May 23, 2017 
3rd Public Hearing: July 11, 2017 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 49 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 2 of 7 

Donations will be incorporated into upcoming or ongoing park improvement projects. The 
development of public facilities is expected to be the result of careful planning and quality 
construction.  In addition, public facilities are expected to be maintained to a standard acceptable 
to the community. 

 
Guidelines established by this policy will apply to all donations made after the effective date of 
this policy.  This policy is also designed to provide guidelines for individuals or groups should they 
desire to decorate, landscape or adorn a donation, such as a tree, bench, or picnic table on City 
owned or City maintained property.  

 
Standards established by this policy will apply to purchased equipment, installation techniques, 
donation plaques, decoration and long term care of all donations made after the adoption of this 
policy. Materials and design of such donations shall be reviewed by the Palmer Parks, Recreation 
and Cultural Resources Advisory Board (the Board). The Board shall forward their 
recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed donation to City Council for final action. 

 
2. STANDARDS FOR DONATIONS 

A. Acquisition or Purchase: The City and the community have an interest in ensuring that 
park and trail elements purchased and installed be of high quality related to style, 
appearance, durability and ease of maintenance. The Board will be responsible for review 
and approval of material and design of all park elements. 
 

B. Appearance and Aesthetics:  The City and the community have an interest in ensuring 
the best appearance and aesthetic quality of their public facilities. Park elements and/or 
their associated donation acknowledgments should reflect the character of the park or 
facility. Prior to installation, the Board must determine that all park elements will be 
installed in such a manner that will not substantially change the character of a facility or 
its intended use. 
 

C. Cost:  The City has an interest in ensuring that the donor covers the full-cost of the 
purchase, installation, and maintenance for the expected life cycle of donated park 
elements. A separate fee schedule is maintained in which the City will detail costs for 
donations, installation, and maintenance. The City also has an interest in ensuring that 
ongoing maintenance costs do not negatively impact the resources available for 
maintenance of other City park facilities. Consequently, the City will assess,  at  the  time  
of  purchase,  a  charge  sufficient  to  cover anticipated  ongoing  maintenance of  donated  
park elements during their expected life expectancy. 
 

D. Maintenance: Donated park elements and/or their associated donation plaques, become 
City property.  Accordingly, the City has the duty to maintain the donation only for the 
expected life cycle of the donation. (See Section 11 for more information on life cycle.) If 
current information is on file, the donor will be informed and given the opportunity to take 
further action at the expiration of the original life cycle. 
 

E. Repair:  The community has an interest in ensuring that all park elements remain in good 
repair. In addition, the public has an interest in ensuring that the short and long-term 
repair costs are reasonable.  Repair parts and materials must be readily available. Donated 

Page 50 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 3 of 7 

park elements must be of high quality to ensure a long life, be resistant to the elements, 
wear and tear, and to acts of vandalism. 
 

3. PROCEDURE FOR MAKING A DONATION 
The City’s Community Development office will manage all donations located on City park property, 
with the assistance of the Parks Maintenance Crew. 

 
A. Application: The donor must contact the Community Development office to determine 

whether a donation may be accepted based upon criteria contained in this policy. If a 
donation can be accepted, the donor will complete an application form. Applications are 
available through the mail or in person at the Community Development office.   
 

4. CRITERIA FOR ACCEPTANCE 
A. Park Plan:  To accept donation of a park element for a specific park facility, a park plan 

must exist showing the available locations for park elements.  If no plan exists then a 
donation may be made to another facility. If a plan exists, but does not identify a particular 
park element proposed for donation, the City may accept the donation under certain 
conditions.  Under this circumstance, the donation must 1) meet a true need of the facility, 
2) not interfere with the intended current or future use or function of the facility and 3) 
not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the 
donation. In the opinion of the City, a facility may be determined to be fully developed 
and the opportunity for donations would not be available. 
 

B. Donation Plaques: Donation plaques, as approved by the Board, are to be directly 
affixed to the donation and/or, are to be made of bronze and purchased through the City.  
Donation plaques will be a maximum 5” x 7” or 2” x 18” inches in size (depending on the 
donated item), utilize either “Palatino” or “Cheltenham Light” lettering and numbers, have 
a leatherette or travertine background texture, be of dark brown oxide stain and be 
manufactured by a City approved vendor to ensure highest quality, life and durability. In 
cases where bronze plaques are not feasible, the Board may approve alternative types. 
The Board must approve all text and graphics for donation plaques. 
 

In park bench applications, the donation plaque will be affixed to the front of the seat back of 
the bench. In picnic table applications, the donation a plaque will be affixed to the table top. In 
tree installation applications, the donation plaque will be installed on a post or on a stone next to 
the base of the tree. 

 
C. Notification: It shall be the responsibility of the donor to provide the Community 

Development office with a current address for purposes of notification regarding their 
donation. For the purposes of notification, the City will send a certified letter to the donor, 
notifying the donor of changes related to the status of their donation (i.e. a need to 
remove, relocate, or comply with conditions set forth in this policy). 
 

5. PARK BENCHES, PICNIC TABLES, & BICYCLE RACKS 
Park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks, and playground components may be placed in locations 
approved by the Board in accordance with an available site plan approved by City Council. Items 
donated must be of a product approved by the Board, and these items become City property at 
time of purchase. 

Page 51 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 4 of 7 

 
A. Bicycle Specifications: 

1. Bicycle Rack Dimensions - 
 

Height:  36” max. – 30” min. 
Materials: Stainless steel or galvanized round or square pipe  

[2-3/8 in OD, 0.154-inch wall, Schedule 40 steel pipe]  
[1-5/8 inch OD, 0.140 wall Schedule 40 steel pipe] 

Safety:  1. Comply with ADA Standards – no overhangs or protrusions that 
could be difficult for visually impaired in the walkway or that may 
cause tripping hazard; 

2. Minimum 10” gap at the bottom of the rack to allow space for pedal; 
3. Space gaps on the rack shall be larger than 9” and smaller than 3.5”  

Locking: 1. Must provide minimum of two-point connection between the bicycle 
frame and the rack; 

2. Locking points must be a minimum of 1 inch and a maximum of 4 
inches 

 
2. Required Bicycle Rack Clearances on Sidewalks - 

 
Description Minimum 

Clearance (feet) 
Object 

Bicycle Rack Clearances 
from other 

Sidewalk Objects 

0 In-ground utility pull box – allow   
      enough room to remove cover 

2 Tree or tree well; newspaper rack;  
      trash can; curb cut/driveway 

6 Bicycle rack  (along curb) 
3 Bicycle rack  (parallel to other rack) 

5 Fire hydrant; stand pipe  
       (near entrances) 

10 Building entrance 
5 Street light pole; Traffic sign pole  
2 Sign pole  (mid-block) 

Bicycle Rack Clearances 
from Parking Spaces 

2 Parallel car parking 
5 Perpendicular car parking 

 
3. Sidewalk Width Requirements for Bicycle Parking - 
 

Description Minimum 
Clearance (feet) 

Location 

Curbside bicycle rack 9 Between curb face and building or 
     café seating (leaving 6’ walkway) 

Building side bicycle rack 1 Between bicycle rack and building  
 

  

Page 52 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 5 of 7 

 
B. Bench Specifications: 

 
Bench Type Framing Seating 

Contour wooden park bench 
with back (6-ft.) 

Heavy duty 2-3/8” 
O. D. pipe fame 

Planks (2” x 4”) with 8 slats of 
untreated wood, or pressure-treated 

planking options 

Wooden park bench without 
back (6-ft.) 

Heavy duty 2-3/8” 
O. D. pipe welded 

framework and    
brace 1-5/16” O. 

D. pipe  

Wood planks (2” x 4”); finished seat 
dimensions 15” wide by 18” high 

 

 
C. Picnic Table Specifications: 

 
Table Framing 

Rectangular expanded metal 
table with backless bench  

(6-ft. or 8-ft.) 
2-3/8" O.D. steel tubing frame to create a sturdy base 

 
D. Options: 
The Board may recommend alternative sizes and types of park bench or picnic table based 
on the location proposed and the City’s needs to the City Council. 

 
6. TREES 
Landscaping and plant selection for park facilities is critical due to the wind conditions, soils, and 
winter weather in Palmer. Accordingly, location, size and specie of tree or trees proposed for 
donation shall be limited to those reviewed and recommended by the Board. The Board shall 
forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed tree(s) to City Council for 
final action. 

 
Trees will only be accepted for areas with suitable soils for the species and areas that have access 
to public water supply in place. 
 

A. Minimum Tree Size: 
Coniferous trees shall have a minimum height of six feet (6’); and 
Deciduous trees shall have a minimum caliper (diameter or thickness) of two inches (2”). 
 

B. Prohibited Plant Species: 
Acer platanoides   Norway Maple 
Aegopodium podagraria  Bishop's Weed  
Berberis  sp.      Barberry  
Caragana arborescens   Siberian Pea Shrub  
Eleagnus sp     Russian Olive  
Euonymus alatus    Burning Bush 
Fallopia japonica   Japanese Knotweed 
Ligistrum sp    Privet 
Lonicera japonica   Japanese Honeysuckle 

Page 53 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 6 of 7 

Polygonum sp    Knotweed 
Populus alba    White Poplar 
Prunus padus     European  Bird Cherry  
Rosa multiflora    Multiflora  Rose  
Sorbaria sorbifolia   False Spirea 
Sorbus aucuparia   European Mountain Ash 
Viburnum opulus   European Cranberry Bush 
 

7. MONUMENTS 
Upright monuments or monuments resembling those typically found in cemeteries may not be 
installed at any City park facility. Exceptions to this policy are monuments installed by the City 
commemorating the history and/or dedication of a park facility. 

 
8. INTERPRETIVE  & OTHER DONATED PARK SIGNS 
Interpretive and other donated park signs as recommended by the Board. The Board shall forward 
their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed sign to City Council for final action. 
Signs shall be consistent with any adopted City way finding standards may be installed at  sites  
that  are  appropriate  for  describing  the  history, geology, environment, and flora and fauna of 
a particular area.  Interpretive signs shall be of a size that is in keeping with the character of the 
site.  Interpretive signs shall be of a design that meets requirements for access to the disabled. 
Interpretive signs shall be designed in such a manner that is consistent with other interpretive 
signs on the site. Interpretive signs shall be constructed of materials that are of high quality, 
vandal resistant, and able to withstand harsh environmental conditions.  

 
9. PUBLIC ART 
Donated public art is subject to full review by the Board. The Board shall forward their 
recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed art to City Council for final action. 

 
10. OTHER DONATIONS 
There may be donations possible, other than those expressly listed or contained within this policy. 
The Board may, at their discretion, review any donation proposal and forward a recommendation. 
The City may accept those donations subject to approval by the City Council.  

 
11. CONDITIONS 

A. Installation: Installation of donated park elements will be scheduled at a time and date 
as determined by Parks Maintenance Crew so as not to unnecessarily interfere with routine 
park maintenance activities. 
 
Placement of the memorial or equipment may not pose a safety risk to users of the public 
space or impede mowing, drainage or public access.  
 

B. Removal and/or Relocation: This section applies to both existing and new donations.  
The City reserves the right to remove and/or relocate donated park elements and their 
associated donation acknowledgments/memorial plaques, when they interfere with site 
safety, maintenance or construction activities. In accordance with previously stated 
procedures in this policy, the City will send a registered letter to each identifiable donor 
notifying the donor of any action related to the disposition of the donation. In certain 
situations, such as safety or emergency situations, the notification may be made after the 

Page 54 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-008 Page 7 of 7 

action taken.  In the event a donation must be permanently removed; the City will seek 
an alternative location consistent with this policy. If no such location can be found, the 
information contained on the memorial may be, at the donor’s request, located on a 
memorial plaque set aside for this purpose at a designated location. 

 
12. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
The long-term care and maintenance of donated park elements is important to both the donor 
and the City. 

 
A. Life Cycle Care Fund: The establishment of the Life Cycle Care Fund ensures that the 

City will care for the donation for the estimated life of the donation, or until such time the 
City determines that the memorial donation must be removed and/or relocated for 
unforeseen circumstances. The establishment of a Life Cycle Care Fund applies to all 
donated park elements installed after the adoption of this policy. 
 
The fund is established with the intent of providing a regular revenue source dedicated 
and sufficient to reasonably maintain future donations for the duration of their expected 
life cycle. The cost of a donation will include the cost of purchase and installation, and the 
funds estimated to be sufficient, based upon the expected life cycle, for maintenance of 
the donated item.  The expected life cycle, routine maintenance and element costs are 
identified in a separate schedule.  This schedule is maintained administratively and may 
be modified from time to time to ensure that sufficient resources are available to maintain 
donations. 
 
Accordingly, the City will determine the level of maintenance required for the donated 
property based upon available budget funding and the type of care needed to reasonably 
maintain the donation. 
 
At the end of the life-cycle term, the donor may choose to extend the life-cycle term by 
paying for the current value of a new donation if deemed necessary by the Board and its 
associated maintenance cost.  The City reserves the right to seek a new donor for the 
donation at the end of the established life cycle should the original donor choose not to 
renew the donation, or if the City has not been able to contact the original donor. 

 
Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 17-008 shall take effect upon adoption by the 

City of Palmer City Council.  
 
Adopted this _____ day of _____, 2017.  
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 55 of 128



Page 56 of 128



______________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska  Resolution No. 05-028 
  Page 1 of 1 
     

         
Introduced by: Mayor Combs 

Date: June 26, 2005 
Action: Adopted 

Vote: Unanimous 
 
    
    CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 
    RESOLUTION NO. 05-028 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PALMER CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO OFFICIALLY NAME ANY UNNAMED CITY PARKS AND ANY 
FUTURE CITY PARKS CREATED BY THE CITY OF PALMER, AFTER THE 
MAYORS WHO HAVE SERVED THIS COMMUNITY SINCE 1951, BEGINNING 
WITH THE FIRST MAYOR OF PALMER AND CONTINUING FORWARD  
 
 WHEREAS, There exists parks within the City of Palmer parks that are unnamed 
or only referred to as to location or configuration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The City of Palmer has adopted a Neighborhood Parks Ordinance 
that will serve to continue creating new parks in the City of Palmer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Mayors of Palmer since 1951 have served the City faithfully 
and should be recognized for their contribution to the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The City of Palmer agrees to place a permanent marker in each park 
with an official ceremony, naming the park in honor of each Mayor. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council that the 
City of Palmer City Manager is authorized to officially name any unnamed city parks and 
any future city parks created by the City of Palmer, after the Mayors who have served 
this community since 1951, beginning with the first Mayor of Palmer and continuing 
forward. 
 
Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska this 26th day of 
July, 2005. 
 
 
 
                      /s/ 
        John C. Combs, Mayor 
 
 
               /s/ 
Janette Bower, City Clerk  

Page 57 of 128



Page 58 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-024 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 17-024 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager and the Mayor to Execute the Necessary Documents to Purchase 
Fire Station No. 3-1 on Lots 10, 11, and 12, Block 12, of the ARRC Subdivision from the Matanuska-Susitna 
Borough In the Amount of One Dollar per Lease Agreement Dated February 28, 1978  
 
Agenda of: July 11, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: John McNutt, Fire Chief 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

√  Finance  

 06/21/2017 

√  Fire  

 20 Jun 2017 

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 1.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-13-10-6030 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 59 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-024 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Resolution No. 17-024 
 Lease Agreement 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
On February 28, 1978, an agreement between the Matanuska Susitna Borough (MSB) and the City of 
Palmer (City) was created for use, maintenance, lease and purchase of the property that is the site of the 
current Fire Station 3-1 (Daniel Contini Fire Station).  The agreement states the City would lease the 
building for one dollar ($1) per year for forty years beginning March 1, 1978, and the lease would end 
March 1, 2018.  The City would occupy the building and be responsible for all maintenance and repairs 
as well as all utilities for the building.  The City would also be responsible for all insurance of the building 
at its own cost.  Section 9 of the agreement provides for the City to buy the property from the MSB by 
the end of the forty years but no earlier than August, 2017.   
 
Fire Station 3-1 is the primary, active fire station serving the City and houses fire apparatus for City 
emergency responses. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 17-024 authorizing the purchase of Fire Station 3-1 from the Matanuska Susitna 
Borough. 
 
 

Page 60 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-024 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 17-024 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager and the Mayor 
to Execute the Necessary Documents to Purchase Fire Station No. 3-1 on Lots 10, 11, 
and 12, Block 12, of the ARRC Subdivision from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough In 
the Amount of One Dollar ($1.00) per Lease Agreement Dated February 28, 1978   
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer Fire & Rescue provides emergency response to structure 
fires, wildland fires, motor vehicle accidents and search and rescue calls in the City of Palmer; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer on February 28, 1978, through Quitclaim Deed, transferred 

Lots 10, 11, 12 of Block 12 of the ARRC Subdivision to the Matanuska Susitna Borough for 
construction of a fire station in the city limits of Palmer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer has an agreement with the Matanuska Susitna Borough, 

Lease Agreement with Option for Purchase; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 9 of said lease gives the City an option to purchase the property for 

one dollar ($1.00) between the period of August 1, 2017, through March 1, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer Fire & Rescue requires the use of the fire station to house 

fire and emergency response vehicles for emergencies inside the City of Palmer for the health 
and safety of the Palmer community. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Palmer City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Manager and the Mayor to execute the necessary documents to purchase Fire Station No. 3-1 on 
Lots 10, 11, 12, Block 12, of the ARRC Subdivision from the Matanuska Susitna Borough in the 
amount of one dollar. 
 
Approved by the City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Introduced by: City Manager Wallace 
Date: June 11, 2017 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 61 of 128



Page 62 of 128



Page 63 of 128



Page 64 of 128



Page 65 of 128



Page 66 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-025 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 17-025 

 
Subject:  Requesting the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly Not Adopt Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, 
Ordinance Serial No. 17-094, and Ordinance No. 17-095 all Pertaining to an Implementation of an 
Areawide Sales Tax 
 
Agenda of: July 11, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Deputy Mayor Linda Combs and Councilmember David Fuller 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.0 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
x Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 67 of 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-025 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Resolution No. 17-025 
 Sponsorship Letter to Introduce 
 Matanuska-Susitna Borough IM No. 17-129 
 Matanuska-Susitna Borough Ordinance Serial No. 17-093 
 Matanuska-Susitna Borough Ordinance Serial No. 17-094 
 Matanuska-Susitna Borough Ordinance Serial No. 17-095 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
On June 20, 2017, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough (MSB) Assembly introduced Ordinance Serial No. 17-
093, Ordinance Serial No. 17-094, and Ordinance Serial No. 17-095 all pertaining to the implementation 
of an areawide sales tax. 
 
The city of Palmer City Council does not support an areawide sales tax and wishes to encourage the MSB 
to not adopt the three ordinances. 
 

Page 68 of 128



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-025 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 17-025 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Requesting the Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
Assembly Not Adopt Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, Ordinance Serial No. 17-094, and 
Ordinance No. 17-095 all Pertaining to an Implementation of an Areawide Sales Tax 
 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2017, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly introduced 
Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, Ordinance Serial No. 17-094, and Ordinance Serial No. 17-095 
pertaining to an areawide sales tax; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Palmer City Council has grave reservations regarding the proposed 

areawide sales tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Palmer City Council is concerned to the immediate and long-term effects 

on those citizens residing within the Palmer city limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the language of the proposed areawide sales tax and the proposed methods 

of collecting and disbursing said tax has caused the Palmer City Council to question the definitions 
within the proposed ordinances; and  

 
WHEREAS, recent actions taken by the state of Alaska Legislature in regard to the funding 

of the education in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough has relieved the immediate pressures of 
identifying education funding for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Palmer City Council believes that its citizens and those of the Matanuska-

Susitna Borough would be better served by not passing Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, Ordinance 
Serial No. 17-094, and Ordinance Serial No. 17-095. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Palmer City Council hereby requesting the 
Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly not adopt Ordinance Serial No. 17-093, Ordinance Serial 
No. 17-094, and Ordinance No. 17-095 all pertaining to an implementation of an areawide sales 
tax. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Introduced by: Deputy Mayor Combs and 
Council Member Fuller 

Date: July 11, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 69 of 128



Page 70 of 128



Page 71 of 128



Page 72 of 128



Page 73 of 128



Page 74 of 128



Page 75 of 128



Page 76 of 128



Page 77 of 128



Page 78 of 128



Page 79 of 128



Page 80 of 128



Page 81 of 128



Page 82 of 128



Page 83 of 128



Page 84 of 128



Page 85 of 128



Page 86 of 128



Page 87 of 128



Page 88 of 128



Page 89 of 128



Page 90 of 128



Page 91 of 128



Page 92 of 128



Page 93 of 128



Page 94 of 128



Page 95 of 128



Page 96 of 128



Page 97 of 128



Page 98 of 128



Page 99 of 128



Page 100 of 128



Page 101 of 128



Page 102 of 128



Page 103 of 128



Page 104 of 128



Page 105 of 128



Page 106 of 128



Page 107 of 128



Page 108 of 128



Page 109 of 128



Page 110 of 128



Page 111 of 128



Page 112 of 128



Page 113 of 128



Page 114 of 128



Page 115 of 128



Page 116 of 128



Page 117 of 128



Page 118 of 128



Page 119 of 128



Page 120 of 128



Page 121 of 128



Page 122 of 128



Page 123 of 128



Page 124 of 128



Page 125 of 128



Page 126 of 128



Page 127 of 128



Page 128 of 128


	Agenda
	Ord. 17-011 Business License Code Changes
	Minutes 5-23-17 Regular Meeting - Revised
	Reports
	CM Report Projects
	Clerk Report
	Mayor's Memo 

	Ord. 17-008 Donation Policy
	Supplemental Documents

	Res. 17-024 Station 3-1 Purchase
	Supplemental Documents

	Res. 17-025 No to MSB Sales Tax
	Supplemental Documents


	Regular Borough Election Tuesday October 3 2017: Off
	All Borough Elections in Calendar Year 2017 ie Special Borough Elections: Off
	Last Name: 
	First Name: 
	Middle Initial: 
	Cell Phone: 
	Home Phone: 
	Work Phone: 
	Email Address: 
	Residence address include street name and house number: 
	City: 
	Zip: 
	Mailing address if different from your residence address: 
	City_2: 
	Zip_2: 
	Precinct Chairperson: Off
	Review Board: Off
	Absentee Voting Official: Off
	Poll Worker: Off
	Canvass Board: Off
	What area of the Borough or to which precinct do you wish to be assigned if any Due to the large number of precincts we are unable to accommodate all requests: 
	Text1: 
	YES If yes how long: Off
	NO: Off
	If no what experience do you have that will help you to successfully serve as an election official: 
	Text2: 
	YES If yes who did you work for: Off
	NO_2: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	NO_4: Off
	YES If yes what were you convicted of: Off
	Date: 


